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CARPENTER LAW GROUP 
Todd D. Carpenter (CA 234464) 
402 West Broadway, 29th Floor 
San Diego, California 92101 
Telephone: 619.756.6994 
Facsimile: 619.756.6991 
todd@carpenterlawyers.com 
 
PATTERSON LAW GROUP 
James R. Patterson (CA 211102) 
402 West Broadway, 29th Floor 
San Diego, California 92101 
Telephone: 619.756.6990 
Facsimile:  619.756.6991 
jim@pattersonlawgroup.com 
 
(Additional Counsel listed below) 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 
 
 
 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 
 
 
JOSHUA TEPERSON, on behalf of himself 
and All Others Similarly Situated, 
 
 Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
THE BLUE BUFFALO COMPANY, LTD, 
a Delaware Corporation and Does 1-20, 
 
 Defendant. 
 
 

Case No.  
 
 

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR: 
 

1. VIOLATION OF THE UNFAIR 
COMPETITION LAW, Business and 
Professions Code §17200 et seq.;  

2. VIOLATION OF THE 
CONSUMERS LEGAL REMEDIES 
ACT, Civil Code §1750, et seq.; and 

3. BREACH OF EXPRESS 
WARRANTY.  
 
 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
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Plaintiff Joshua Teperson brings this action on behalf of himself and similarly 

situated individuals who purchased pet food manufactured and marketed by Defendant 

The Blue Buffalo Company Ltd.and states:   

NATURE OF ACTION 

1. This is a class action against Blue Buffalo arising out of the marketing and 

sale of its pet food products (“Pet Food”).  Defendant currently, and at all times relevant 

hereto promoted its Pet Food by issuing several materially false claims concerning the 

ingredients in its Pet Food.  Specifically, Defendant conveyed a clear representation to 

consumers through its marketing, advertising and labeling campaign that its Pet Food did 

not contain certain undesirable ingredients.  

2. Defendant’s marketing and advertising campaign is extensive and 

nationwide, targeting ingredient-conscious pet owners. 

3. The most significant false material representation made by Defendant is that 

“NO Chicken/Poultry By-Product Meals” are present as ingredients in any of Defendant’s 

Pet Food. 

4. Defendant also stated falsely that its products do not contain corn, wheat, or 

soy and that there are no artificial preservatives, colors, or flavors present in its Pet Food. 

5. Defendant’s representations are materially false, misleading, and deceptive to 

consumers.  Moreover, they are blanketed all over its advertisements, product packaging, 

commercials, and internet website as part of a comprehensive and deceptive marketing 

campaign.  

6. Plaintiff relied on Defendant’s misleading representations when he purchased 

Blue Buffalo’s Hearty Chicken Dinner, “Freedom Grain Free Grillers” for his dogs.  

Plaintiff and the Class (defined below) paid a premium for the Pet Food over comparable 

pet food brands that do not implicate its pet food to be “chicken/poultry by-product meal” 

free. 

7. Reliance on the misrepresentations led Plaintiff and other members of the 

Class to suffer economic loss by purchasing the Pet Food because they paid more than 
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they would have for comparable pet food that also contains chicken/poultry by-product 

meal.  In fact, Plaintiff and the Class members did not receive the benefit of the bargain 

and instead, received pet food that contains chicken/poultry by-product meal. 

8. Reasonable consumers, such as Plaintiff and the other members of the Class, 

do not have the specialized knowledge and/or equipment to determine the ingredients in 

the Pet Food as being inconsistent with Blue Buffalo’s representations.  The consumers 

are forced to rely on Blue Buffalo’s representations about its Pet Food. 

9. In fact, Defendant knows that consumers are willing to pay a premium for 

Pet Food that does not contain certain undesirable ingredients, and consumers rely on the 

representations made in Defendant’s advertising and product labels.  The representations 

made by Defendant concerning the ingredients in its Pet Food are deceptive and 

misleading and are designed to induce consumers to buy the Pet Food.  Defendant knew, 

at the time it began selling the Pet Food, that it contained the aforementioned undesirable 

ingredients. 

10. This action seeks to provide relief and redress to consumers who have been 

harmed and misled by Defendant’s advertising practices.  Defendant’s conduct has 

included the systematic and ongoing practice of disseminating false and misleading 

information throughout the United States, including California, by way of ubiquitous, 

multi-media advertising and product labeling.  

11. Plaintiff asserts these claims on behalf of himself and the Class for violations 

of California’s Unfair Competition Law, Business & Professions Code Section 17200, et 

seq., California’s Consumer Legal Remedies Act, Civil Code Section 1750, et seq., and 

for breach of express warranty.  

12. Through this action, Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief, actual damages, 

restitution, and/or disgorgement of profits, statutory damages, attorneys’ fees, costs, and 

all other relief available to the Class as a result of Blue Buffalo’s unlawful conduct.  

13. Plaintiffs and the Class have been damaged in the amount of the price of the 

Products they purchased. 
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

14. This Court has original jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2).  The 

matter in controversy, exclusive of interest and costs, exceeds the sum or value of 

$5,000,000 and is a class action in which there are in excess of 100 class members and 

many members of the Class are citizens of a state different from Defendant. 

15. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § § 1391(a) and (b) 

because a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to Plaintiff’s claims 

occurred in this judicial district. 

PARTIES 

16. Plaintiff Josh Teperson is, and at all times relevant to this action has been, a 

resident and citizen of San Diego County, California.  Plaintiff has purchased the Pet 

Food in San Diego, California in reliance on Defendant’s representations the Pet Food did 

not contain “chicken/poultry by-product meal.”  This representation was material to 

Plaintiff’s decision to purchase the Pet Food at a premium.  Plaintiff was willing to 

purchase the Pet Food at the premium because of the representations that the Pet Food did 

not contain “chicken/poultry by-product meal.”  Indeed, Plaintiff would not have 

purchased the Pet Food, nor paid as much for the Pet Food, or would have purchased an 

alternative pet food in the absence of Defendant’s  representation the Pet Food was 

“chicken/poultry by-product meal” free.   

17. Defendant Blue Buffalo is a Delaware Corporation, with its principal place of 

business located at 444 Danbury Road, Wilton, Connecticut 06897.  Blue Buffalo is in the 

business of manufacturing, marketing, advertising, and selling its pet food, pet treats, and 

other pet related products to individuals throughout the United States, including 

individuals in California, such as Plaintiff and the Class. 

FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

18. Plaintiff purchased Defendant’s Pet Food products, specifically Blue 

Buffalo’s Hearty Chicken Dinner, “Freedom Grain Free Grillers” at a PetSmart store 

located at 4253 Genesee Avenue, San Diego, California 92117, San Diego, California.  
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Plaintiff purchased the Defendant’s Pet Food for personal use, specifically for feeding his 

two dogs. 

19. Plaintiff observed and reasonably relied on Defendant’s material 

misrepresentations concerning the ingredients present in its products when making the 

purchase.  This reliance was to Plaintiff’s detriment, and Plaintiff would not have 

purchased the Pet Food had he been aware of the actual ingredients present in the Pet 

Food. 

20. Defendant Blue Buffalo sells pet products for household pets including, but 

not limited to, dry food, wet food, and treats.  Defendant’s marketing strategy and the 

value of its brand reputation are dependent upon its ingredients and promises to 

consumers that its products are nutritional and superior to other brands because its 

products allegedly do not contain “chicken/poultry by-product meals,” as well as alleged 

claims its products are free of corn, grains, and artificial preservatives. 

21. Defendant’s promotional strategy is specifically designed to capitalize on the 

trend among pet owners -  more commonly referred to now as “pet parents” - to treat their 

pets  like members of the family.  Blue Buffalo’s slogan is specifically directed at such 

“pet parents”:  “Love them like family.  Feed them like family.” 

22. Blue Buffalo’s slogan implies strongly that its products are human-grade and 

fit for human consumption.  Yet these statements are materially false because products 

that contain ingredients such as chicken/poultry by-product meal are, in fact, not fit for 

human consumption. 

 

 

 

 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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Source: www.bluebuffalo.com/nutrition 5/23/2014 

23. Defendant’s misrepresentations also include a misleading so-called “True 

BLUE Promise” to consumers that Blue Buffalo uses “Only the Finest Natural 

Ingredients.”  This promise is prominently displayed throughout all of Defendant’s 

advertising and on its product labels. 

 

Source: www.bluebuffalo.com/news/true-blue-promise 5/23/2014 
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Source: www.bluebuffalo.com/best-dog-food 5/23/2014 

 

Source: Wilderness Blue Rocky Mountain Recipe  
~ with Bison ~ and LifeSource Bits Adult product label 
 
24. Furthermore, in addition to Blue Buffalo’s “family” and “promise” slogans, it 

allows consumers to utilize a comparison tool named “The True BLUE Test” on its 

website for consumers to evaluate how their current pet food measures up to Blue 

Buffalo’s.  The test invites consumers to compare ingredients, which Blue Buffalo has 

determined to be significant for their nutritional value.  One category included is labeled 

“NEVER Has Chicken (or Poultry) By-Product Meals.”  When a consumer’s computer 

mouse hovers over this specific label a pop-up window appears: 
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Source: www.bluebuffalo.com/dog-food-comparison/test-results 5/23/2014 

25. Defendant’s Pet Food also contains “LifeSource Bits,” exclusively created 

for and by Blue Buffalo, that it represents as being “cold-formed” kibble that is comprised 

of essential “vitamins, minerals, and antioxidants” that provides a series of special health 

benefits for pets, which are present in each dry Pet Food product Defendant 

manufacturers, including Defendant’s “100% Grain Free” products. 

26. In actuality, Nestle Purina Petcare Company hired an independent laboratory 

to investigate and test Blue Buffalo’s Pet Food.  The April 2014 investigation reveals that 

Blue Buffalo’s core statements about its products’ ingredients are materially false.  (Nestle 

Purina Petcare Company v. The Blue Buffalo Company LTD., E.D. Mo., Case No. 4:14-

cv-00859, Dkt. #9 May 11, 2014). 

27. Specifically, the independent laboratory revealed that amounts of 

chicken/poultry by-product meal is present in Blue Buffalo’s Pet Food.  Chicken/poultry 

by-product meal is found at 25% in one sample tested.  Furthermore, the investigation 

concluded chicken/poultry by-product meal is present in Defendant’s “LifeSource Bits” 

(defined above) at a range between 0% to 11%. 
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28. The independent laboratory also revealed the presence of rice and/or corn in 

Defendant’s 100% Grain Free products and its LifeSource Bits.  Corn and/or rice is found 

in the Pet Food in one sample at 1% and in the LifeSource Bits in ranges between 1% and 

3%. 

29. In fact, a recent ruling from the National Advertising Division (“NAD”) of 

Better Business Bureaus confirmed the misleading nature of Blue Buffalo’s advertising.  

The NAD report stated that Blue Buffalo “[should] discontinue its ‘no animal by-

products’ claims when made in reference to pet foods containing fish meal, lamb meal, 

and/or liver.”  (NAD Case #4892, decided July 11, 2008, attached hereto as Exhibit A.)  

30. In addition, the independent laboratory found that Defendant’s Pet Food that 

is labeled “100% Grain Free,” which includes “LifeSource Bits,” contains rice hulls as an 

ingredient.  The presence of rice hulls renders Defendant’s statements that its products are 

“grain free” materially false and misleading.     

31. Importantly, Blue Buffalo charges a significant price premium for its Pet 

Foods compared to its competitors.  Defendant is able to charge this premium due in large 

part to consumers’ justifiable reliance on its false claims false claims concerning the 

quality of the ingredients found in its Pet Food.  

32. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s conduct, Plaintiff and the 

Class members did not receive the benefit of the bargain, and as such, suffered actual 

damages and/or economic losses. 

CLASS DEFINTION AND ALLEGATIONS 

33. Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of himself and all other similarly 

situated individuals pursuant to Rule 23 (a), (b)(2), and (b)(3) of the Federal Rules of 

Civil Procedure and seeks certification of the following Class: 

All California consumers who, within the applicable statute of 
limitations period, purchased the Pet Food. 
 
Excluded from the Class are Blue Buffalo, its affiliates, officers 
and directors. 
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34. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members of the 

Class is impracticable.  Plaintiff is informed and believes that the proposed Class contains 

thousands of purchasers of the Pet Food who have been damaged by Blue Buffalo’s 

conduct as alleged herein.  The precise number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff. 

35. This action involves common questions of law and fact, which predominate 

over any questions affecting individual class members.  These common legal and factual 

questions include, but are not limited to, the following: 

a. whether the claims discussed above are true, or are misleading, or 

objectively reasonably likely to deceive; 

b. whether Blue Buffalo’s alleged conduct violates public policy; 

c. whether the alleged conduct constitutes violations of the laws asserted; 

d. whether Blue Buffalo engaged in false or misleading advertising; 

e. whether Plaintiff and Class members have sustained monetary loss and 

the proper measure of that loss; and 

f. whether Plaintiff and Class members are entitled to other appropriate 

remedies, including corrective advertising and injunctive relief. 

36. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class, 

because, inter alia, all Class members were injured through the uniform misconduct 

described above having been exposed and misled by Blue Buffalo’s false representations 

regarding the ingredients of its Pet Food.  Plaintiff is advancing the same claims and legal 

theories on behalf of himself and all members of the Class. 

37. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the member of the 

Class, have retained counsel experienced in complex consumer class action litigation, and 

intends to prosecute this action vigorously.  Plaintiff has no adverse or antagonistic 

interests to those of the Class. 

38. A class action is superior to all other available means for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of this controversy.  The damages or other financial detriment suffered by the 

individual Class members is relatively small compared to the burden and expense that 
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would be entailed by individual litigation of their claims against Blue Buffalo.  It would 

thus be virtually impossible for the Class, on an individual basis, to obtain effective 

redress for the wrongs done to them.  Individualized litigation would create the danger of 

inconsistent or contradictory judgments arising from the same set of facts and would also 

increase the delay or expense to all parties and the courts.  By contrast, the class action 

device provides the benefits of the adjudication of these issues in a single proceeding, 

ensures economies of scale and comprehensive supervision by a single court, and presents 

no unusual management difficulties under the circumstances here. 

39. Plaintiff seeks preliminary and permanent injunctive and equitable relief on 

behalf of the entire Class, preventing Blue Buffalos from further engaging in the acts 

described and requiring Blue Buffalo to provide full restitution to Plaintiffs and Class 

members. 

40. Unless a Class is certified, Blue Buffalo will retain monies received as a 

result of its conduct that were taken from Plaintiff and Class members.  Unless a Class-

wide injunction is issued, Blue Buffalo will continue to commit the violations alleged, and 

the members of the Class and the general public will continue to be deceived. 

41. Blue Buffalo has acted and refused to act on grounds generally applicable to 

the Class, making it appropriate final injunctive relief with respect to the Class as a whole. 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17500, et seq.) 

42. Plaintiff repeats the allegations in the foregoing paragraphs as if fully set 

forth herein. 

43. Defendant engaged in unlawful conduct under California Business & 

Professions Code § 17500, et seq., by marketing the Pet Food in a manner that uniformly 

misrepresented the Pet Food’s ingredients, and in fact, upon reasonable reliance of said 

marketing, induced Plaintiff and Class members to purchase the Pet Food at a premium.   
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44. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s violations, Plaintiff would 

not have otherwise purchased the Pet Food and, therefore, suffered injury in fact and lost 

money. 

45. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis, alleges, that as a further 

direct and proximate result of the marketing described above, Defendant has received 

from members of the general public, including the Class, money Defendant obtained 

through its violation of California Business & Professions Code § 17500, et seq., which 

Defendant continues to hold for its sole benefit. 

46. Accordingly, Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated, 

seek equitable relief in the form of an order requiring Defendant to refund to Plaintiff and 

the Class members all monies they paid for the Pet Food and, in addition, an order 

requiring Defendant to both inform the consuming public that its Pet Food products do 

indeed contain the undesirable ingredients of chicken/poultry by-product meal. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200, et seq.) 

47. Plaintiff repeats the allegations in the foregoing paragraphs as if fully set 

forth herein. 

48. Defendant’s conduct is unlawful in that it violates the False Advertising Law, 

California Business & Professions Code § 17500, et seq. 

49. Defendant’s conduct is unfair in that it offends established public policy 

and/or is immoral, unethical, oppressive, unscrupulous, unconscionable or substantially 

injurious to Plaintiff and the Class members.  The harm to Plaintiff and the Class 

members arising from Defendant’s conduct outweighs any legitimate benefit Defendant 

has derived from the conduct. 

50. Defendant’s misrepresentation and omissions are likely to mislead a 

reasonable consumer. 

51. Plaintiff relied on Defendant’s misrepresentations and omissions. 
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52. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s violations, Plaintiff would 

not have otherwise purchased the Pet Food and, therefore, suffered injury in fact and lost 

money. 

53. Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and the Class members, seek restitution of 

monies they paid for the Pet Food.  Additionally, Plaintiff seeks equitable and injunctive 

relief on behalf of himself and the Class members pursuant to Cal. Business & Professions 

Code § 17203. 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Violation of the California Consumers Legal Remedies Act) 

54. Plaintiff repeats the allegations in the foregoing paragraphs as if fully set 

forth herein. 

55. At all times relevant hereto, there was in full force and effect the California 

Consumers Legal Remedies Act (“CLRA” or “Act”), Cal. Civ. Code § 1750, which 

applies to all Class members by virtue of Defendant’s choice of law election. 

56. Plaintiff and the Class members are consumers within the meaning of Cal. 

Civ. Code § 1761(d).  

57. Blue Buffalo violated the CLRA’s proscription against the concealment of its 

ingredients in its Pet Food.  Specifically, Blue Buffalo has violated:  (a) § 1770(a)(5)’s 

proscription against representing that goods have uses or characteristics they do not have; 

(b) § 1770(a)(7)’s proscription against representing that goods are of  particular standard 

or quality when they are of another; (c) § 1770(a)(14)’s proscription against 

“Representing that a transaction confers or involves rights, remedies, or obligations which 

it does not have or involve, or which are prohibited by law.” 

58. Under California law, a duty to disclose arises in four circumstances: (1) 

when the defendant is in a fiduciary relationship with the plaintiff; (2) when the defendant 

had exclusive knowledge of material facts not known to the plaintiff; (3) when the 

defendant actively conceals a material fact from the plaintiff; or (4) when the defendant 

makes partial representations but also suppresses some material facts. 
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59. Defendant owed a duty to disclose material facts about its Pet Food 

ingredients to consumers.  Blue Buffalo breached such duty as alleged in this Complaint. 

60. Plaintiff and the Class suffered actual damages as a direct and proximate 

result of Blue Buffalo’s actions, concealment and/or omissions in violation of the CLRA, 

as evidenced by the substantial sums Blue Buffalo pocketed.  

61. Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and for all those similarly situated, demands 

judgment against Blue Buffalo for equitable relief in the form of restitution and/or 

disgorgement of funds paid to Blue Buffalo. 

62. Pursuant to §1782(d) of CLRA, Plaintiff Josh Teperson notified Defendant in 

writing by certified mail of the particular violations of §1770 of the Act and demanded 

that Defendant rectify the problems associated with the actions detailed above and give 

notice to all affected consumers of Defendant’s intent to so act.  A copy of the letter is 

attached hereto as Exhibit B.  If Defendant fails to rectify or agree to rectify the problems 

associated with the actions detailed above and give notice to all affected consumers within 

30 days of the date of written notice pursuant to §1782 of the Act, Plaintiff will amend 

this complaint to add claims for actual, punitive and statutory damages, as appropriate.  

63. Defendant’s conduct is malicious, fraudulent and wanton, and provides 

misleading information. 

64. Pursuant to §1780(d) of the Act, attached hereto as Exhibit C is the affidavit 

showing that this action has been commenced in the proper forum. 

 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

Wherefore, Plaintiffs pray for a judgment: 

A. Certifying the Class as requested herein; 

B. Awarding Plaintiffs and the proposed Class members damages; 

C. Awarding restitution and disgorgement of Defendants’ revenues to Plaintiffs 

and the proposed Class members; 

D. Awarding declaratory and injunctive relief as permitted by law or equity, 
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including: enjoining Defendants from continuing the unlawful practices as set forth 

herein, and directing Defendants to identify, with Court supervision, victims of their 

conduct and pay them all money they are required to pay;  

E. Ordering Defendants to engage in a corrective advertising campaign; 

F. Awarding attorneys’ fees and costs;  

G. Providing such further relief as may be just and proper. 

 

Dated:  July 17, 2014 CARPENTER LAW GROUP  
 
 
By:      /s/ Todd D. Carpenter  
  Todd D. Carpenter (CA 234464) 

402 West Broadway, 29th Floor 
San Diego, California 92101 
Telephone: 619.756.6994 
Facsimile: 619.756.6991 
todd@carpenterlawyers.com 
 
PATTERSON LAW GROUP 
James R. Patterson (CA 211102) 
402 West Broadway, 29th Floor 
San Diego, California 92101 
Telephone: 619.756.6990 
Facsimile:  619.756.6991 
jim@pattersonlawgroup.com 
 
CARLSON LYNCH LTD 
Benjamin Sweet (to be admitted pro hac vice) 
Edwin Kilpella (to be admitted pro hac vice) 
PNC PARK  
115 Federal Street, Suite 210 
Pittsburgh, PA 15212 
Tel: (412) 322-9243 
Bsweet@Carlsonlynch.com 
Ekilpella@Carlsonlynch.com 

 
  

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

 Plaintiff hereby demands a trial of her claims by jury to the extent authorized by 

law. 

 

Dated:  July 17, 2014 CARPENTER LAW GROUP  
 
 
By:      /s/ Todd D. Carpenter  
  Todd D. Carpenter (CA 234464) 

402 West Broadway, 29th Floor 
San Diego, California 92101 
Telephone: 619.756.6994 
Facsimile: 619.756.6991 
todd@carpenterlawyers.com 
 
PATTERSON LAW GROUP 
James R. Patterson (CA 211102) 
402 West Broadway, 29th Floor 
San Diego, California 92101 
Telephone: 619.756.6990 
Facsimile:  619.756.6991 
jim@pattersonlawgroup.com 
 
CARLSON LYNCH LTD 
Benjamin Sweet (to be admitted pro hac vice) 
Edwin Kilpella (to be admitted pro hac vice) 
PNC PARK  
115 Federal Street, Suite 210 
Pittsburgh, PA 15212 
Tel: (412) 322-9243 
Bsweet@Carlsonlynch.com 
Ekilpella@Carlsonlynch.com 

 
  

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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TODD D. CARPENTER 
619.756.6994 direct 

todd@carpenterlawyers.com 

July 17, 2014 

CERTIFIED MAIL/RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Chief Executive Officer / President 
The Blue Buffalo Company 
444 Danbury Road  
Wilton, Connecticut 06897 

Re: Teperson v. The Blue Buffalo Company, LTD 

Dear Sir/Madame: 

Our law firm, Patterson Law Group and Carlson Lynch represent Joshua Teperson and all 
other similarly situated California Residents in an action against The Blue Buffalo Company, 
LTD arising out of, inter alia, misrepresentations, either express or implied to consumers that its 
Pet Food products do not contain chicken/poultry by-product meals; do not contain corn, wheat, 
or soy and that there are no artificial preservatives, colors or flavors present in its Pet Food.   

Mr. Teperson and others similarly situated purchased the Blue Buffalo Pet Food products 
unaware that Blue Buffalo’s representations found on the Products’ labels and packages are 
false. The full claims, including the facts and circumstances surrounding these claims, are 
detailed in the Class Action Complaint, a copy of which is enclosed and incorporated by this 
reference. 

Blue Buffalo’s representations are false and misleading and constitute unfair methods of 
competition and unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent acts or practices, undertaken by Blue Buffalo 
with the intent to result in the sale of its pet food(s). Blue Buffalo’s slogan implies strongly that 
its products are human-grade and fit for human consumption.  Yet these statements are 
materially false because products that contain ingredients such as chicken/poultry by-product 
meal are, in fact, not fit for human consumption. Blue Buffalo’s misrepresentations also include 
a misleading so-called “True BLUE Promise” to consumers that Blue Buffalo uses “Only the 
Finest Natural Ingredients.” This promise is prominently displayed throughout all of its 
advertising and on its product labels. Furthermore, in addition to Blue Buffalo’s “family” and 
“promise” slogans, it allows consumers to utilize a comparison tool named, “The True BLUE 
Test” on its website for consumers to evaluate how their current pet food measures up to Blue 
Buffalo’s.  The test invites consumers to compare ingredients, which Blue Buffalo has 

402 West Broadway, 29th Floor | San Diego, California 92101 | P. 619.756.6994 | Web: Carpenterlawyers.com 
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determined to be significant for their nutritional value.  One category included is labeled 
“NEVER Has Chicken (or Poultry) By-Product Meals.”   
 
 Blue Buffalo’s Pet Food also contains “LifeSource Bits,” exclusively created for and by 
Blue Buffalo, that it represents as being “cold-formed” kibble that is comprised of essential 
“vitamins, minerals, and antioxidants” that provides a series of special health benefits for pets, 
which are present in each dry Pet Food product it manufacturers, including its “100% Grain 
Free” products. 
 

In actuality, Nestle Purina Petcare Company hired an independent laboratory to 
investigate and test Blue Buffalo’s Pet Food.  The April 2014 investigation reveals that Blue 
Buffalo’s core statements about its products’ ingredients are materially false.  (Nestle Purina 
Petcare Company v. The Blue Buffalo Company LTD., E.D. Mo., Case No. 4:14-cv-00859, Dkt. 
#9 May 11, 2014). Specifically, the independent laboratory revealed that amounts of 
chicken/poultry by-product meal are present in Blue Buffalo’s Pet Food.  Chicken/poultry by-
product meal is found at 25% in one sample tested.  Furthermore, the investigation concluded 
chicken/poultry by-product meal is present in Defendant’s “LifeSource Bits” (defined above) at a 
range between 0% to 11%. The independent laboratory also revealed the presence of rice and/or 
corn in Blue Buffalo’s 100% Grain Free products and its LifeSource Bits.  Corn and/or rice is 
found in the Pet Food in one sample at 1% and in the LifeSource Bits in ranges between 1% and 
3%.  
 
 In fact, a recent ruling from the National Advertising Division (“NAD”) of Better 
Business Bureaus confirmed the misleading nature of Blue Buffalo’s advertising.  The NAD 
report stated that Blue Buffalo “[should] discontinue its ‘no animal by-products’ claims when 
made in reference to pet foods containing fish meal, lamb meal, and/or liver.”  See, NAD Case 
#4892, decided July 11, 2008.  In addition, the independent laboratory found that Blue Buffalo’s 
Pet Food that is labeled “100% Grain Free,” which includes “LifeSource Bits,” contains rice 
hulls as an ingredient.  The presence of rice hulls renders Defendant’s statements that its 
products are “grain free” materially false and misleading.    Importantly, Blue Buffalo charges a 
significant price premium for its Pet Foods compared to its competitors.  Blue Buffalo is able to 
charge this premium due in large part to consumers’ justifiable reliance on its false claims false 
claims concerning the quality of the ingredients found in its Pet Food 
 
 This practice constitutes a violation of California Civil Code §1770(a) under, inter alia, 
the following subdivisions: 
 

(5) Representing that Blue Buffalo’s Pet Food has. . . characteristics, . . . uses 
[or] benefits. . . which [it does] not have. 

 
* * * 
  (7) Representing that [Blue Buffalo’s Pet Food is] of a particular standard, 

quality or grade, . . . if [it is] of another. 
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* * * 
 

(9) Advertising goods . . . with the intent not to sell them as advertised. 
 

* * * 
 

(16) Representing that [Blue Buffalo’s Pet Food has] been supplied in 
accordance with a previous representation when [it has] not. 

 
California Civil Code §1770(a)(5)-(16). 
 
 Blue Buffalo’s representations also constitute violations of California Business and 
Professions Code §17200, et seq., and a breach of express warranties. 
 
 While the Complaint constitutes sufficient notice of the claims asserted, pursuant to 
California Civil Code §1782, we hereby demand on behalf of our clients and all other similarly 
situated California Residents that Blue Buffalo immediately correct and rectify this violation of 
California Civil Code §1770 by ceasing the misleading marketing campaign and ceasing 
dissemination of false and misleading information as described in the enclosed Complaint.  In 
addition, Blue Buffalo should offer to refund the purchase price to all consumer purchasers of 
these Products, plus reimbursement for interest, costs, and fees. 
 
 Plaintiffs will, after 30 days from the date of this letter, amend the Complaint without 
leave of Court, as permitted by California Civil Code §1782, to include claims for actual and 
punitive damages (as may be appropriate) if a full and adequate response to this letter is not 
received.  These damage claims also would include claims under already asserted theories of 
unlawful business acts, as well as the claims under the Consumers Legal Remedies Act.  Thus, to 
avoid further litigation, it is in the interest of all parties concerned that Blue Buffalo address this 
problem immediately. 
 
 Blue Buffalo must undertake all of the following actions to satisfy the requirements of 
California Civil Code §1782(c): 
 
 1. Identify or make a reasonable attempt to identify purchasers of the subject 
Products who reside in California; 
 
 2. Notify all such purchasers so identified that upon their request, Blue Buffalo will 
offer an appropriate correction, replacement, or other remedy for its wrongful conduct, which 
can include a full refund of the purchase price paid for such products, plus interest, costs and 
fees; 
 
 3. Undertake (or promise to undertake within a reasonable time if it cannot be done 
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immediately) the actions described above for all Blue Buffalo Pet Food purchasers who so 
request; and 

4. Cease from expressly or impliedly representing to consumers that these products
contain higher quality ingredients than they actually do in the manner described herein and in the 
operative Complaint.  

We await your response. 

Sincerely, 

CARPENTER LAW GROUP 

/s/ Todd D. Carpenter  

Enclosure(s) 

Cc: Patterson Law Group 
Carlson Lynch 
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CARPENTER LAW GROUP 
Todd D. Carpenter (CA 234464) 
402 West Broadway, 29th Floor 
San Diego, California 92101 
Telephone: 619.756.6994 
Facsimile: 619.756.6991 
todd@carpenterlawyers.com 

PATTERSON LAW GROUP 
James R. Patterson (CA 211102) 
402 West Broadway, 29th Floor 
San Diego, California 92101 
Telephone: 619.756.6990 
Facsimile:  619.756.6991 
jim@pattersonlawgroup.com 

CARLSON LYNCH LTD 
Benjamin Sweet (to be admitted pro hac vice) 
Edwin Kilpella (to be admitted pro hac vice) 
PNC PARK  
115 Federal Street, Suite 210 
Pittsburgh, PA 15212 
Tel: (412) 322-9243 
Bsweet@Carlsonlynch.com 
Ekilpella@Carlsonlynch.com 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

JOSHUA TEPERSON, on behalf of himself 
and All Others Similarly Situated, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

THE BLUE BUFFALO COMPANY, LTD, 
a Delaware Corporation and Does 1-20, 

Defendant. 

Case No. 

CLASS ACTION 

DECLARATION OF TODD D. 
CARPENTER IN SUPPORT OF 
JURISDICTION  

Case No. 
DECLARATION OF TODD D. CARPENTER 

'14CV1682 RBBWQH
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I, Todd D. Carpenter, declare as follows: 

1. I am an attorney duly licensed to practice before all of the courts of the State

of California.  I am the principle and owner of the Carpenter Law Group, and the counsel 

of record for plaintiffs in the above-entitled action 

2. Defendant THE BLUE BUFFALO COMPANY has done and is doing

business in the Southern District of California.  Such business includes the marketing, 

distributing and sale of its Blue Buffalo branded pet food.   

3. Plaintiff Teperson purchased the Blue Buffalo products in San Diego,

California. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing is true and correct.  Executed this 17th Day of July, 2014 in San Diego, 

California. 

/s/ Todd D. Carpenter  
Todd D. Carpenter 

Case No. 1 
DECLARATION OF TODD D. CARPENTER 
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Todd D. Carpenter (CA 234464)
CARPENTER LAW GROUP
402 West Broadway, 29th Floor
San Diego, California 92101
Telephone: 619.756.6994
Facsimile: 619.756.6991
todd@carpenterlawyers.com

James R. Patterson (CA 211102)
PATTERSON LAW GROUP
402 West Broadway, 29th Floor
San Diego, CA 92101
Telephone:  619.756.6990
Facsimile:   619.756.6991
jim@pattersonlawgroup.com

Benjamin Sweet (to be admitted pro hac vice)
Edwin Kilpella (to be admitted pro hac vice)
CARLSON LYNCH LTD
PNC PARK 
115 Federal Street, Suite 210
Pittsburgh, PA 15212
Tel: (412) 322-9243
Bsweet@Carlsonlynch.com
Ekilpella@Carlsonlynch.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Class
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